Minutes of the **Planning Control Committee** of the **Test Valley Borough Council**

held in Conference Room 1, Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, Andover on Tuesday 3 July 2012 at 5:30 pm

Attendance:

Councillor C Collier	(P)	Councillor I Hibberd	(A)
(Chairman)		(Vice-Chairman)	
Councillor G Bailey	(A)	Councillor N Long	(P)
Councillor Z Brooks	(P)	Councillor J Lovell	(A)
Councillor P Bundy	(P)	Councillor C Lynn	(A)
Councillor A Dowden	(P)	Councillor J Neal	(P)
Councillor M Flood	(P)	Councillor A Tupper	(A)
Councillor M Hatley	(P)	Councillor A Ward	(P)
Councillor A Hope	(P)	Councillor J Whiteley	(P)
Councillor P Hurst	(P)		

Also in Attendance:

Councillor I Andersen Councillor P North

Councillor A Brook

73 <u>Minutes</u>

Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 May 2012 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

74 Schedule of Development Applications

Resolved:

That the applications for development as set out in the attached schedule be determined as indicated.

Note:

In accordance with the Council's Scheme of Public Participation, the following spoke on the applications indicated.

Agenda Item No.	Page No.	<u>Application</u>	<u>Speaker</u>
7	9 – 76	11/02729/OUTN	Mrs B Long (Andover Town Council)

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee – 3 July 2012

(The meeting terminated at 6.40 pm)

Schedule of Development Applications

7 **APPLICATION NO.** 11/02729/OUTN

APPLICATION TYPE OUTLINE APPLICATION - NORTH

REGISTERED 08.12.2011

APPLICANT Mr Andrew Trotter

SITE Land To The Rear Of Former Shepherds Spring

County Junior School, Smannell Road, Andover,

ANDOVER TOWN (ALAMEIN)

PROPOSAL Outline - Residential development for 50 dwellings and

provision of vehicular access from Smannell Road

AMENDMENTS

CASE OFFICER Mr Gregg Chapman

OUTLINE PERMISSION subject to:

- 1. Applications for the approval of all the reserved matters referred to herein shall be made within a period of three years from the date of this permission. The development to which the permission relates shall be begun not later than which ever is the later of the following dates:
 - i) five years from the date of this permission: or
 - ii) two years from the final approval of the said reserved matters, or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.

Reason: To comply with the provision of S.92 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

- 2. Approval of the details of the layout, scale and appearance of the buildings, and the landscaping of the site (herein after called "the reserved matters") shall be obtained from the local planning authority in writing before any development is commenced.
 - Reason: To comply with Article 4 of the Town and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order).
- 3. No development shall take place until samples and details of the materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
 - Reason: To ensure the development has a satisfactory external appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy DES07.
- 4. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment shall be completed before the buildings are occupied. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the works undertaken maintain the appearance of the site and enhance the character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policies DES10 and AME01.

- 5. No development shall commence until proposals for the provision of car parking in accordance with the maximum standards in Annex 2 of the Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until the approved parking has been provided and made available for use and the parking spaces shall thereafter be retained for vehicle parking purposes at all times. Reason: In order to ensure the development contributes towards achieving a sustainable transport system and in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy TRA02.
- 6. Development shall not be commenced until the Local Planning Authority shall have approved in writing, details of:
 - a) the width, alignment, gradient and surface materials for any proposed roads including all relevant horizontal and longitudinal cross sections showing existing and proposed levels
 - b) the type of street lighting including calculations, contour illumination plans and means to reduce light pollution
 - c) the method of surface water drainage including local sustainable disposal.

Reason: To ensure that the roads, footway, footpath, street lighting and surface water drainage are constructed and maintained to an appropriate standard to serve the development in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policies TRA06.

- 7. Prior to the commencement of development full details of the layout for the parking and manoeuvring onsite of contractor's and delivery vehicles during the construction period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the commencement of development and retained for the duration of the construction period.
 - Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policies TRA05 and TRA09.
- 8. At least the first 4.5 metres of any drive or vehicle parking area measured from the access point at the nearside edge of the carriageway of the adjacent highway shall be surfaced in a non-migratory material prior to the use of the access commencing and retained as such at all times.
 - Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policies TRA05 and TRA09.
- 9. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until provision for 96 long stay, and 50 short stay cycle parking/storage spaces has been made, in accordance with details that shall have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be maintained for

this purpose at all times.

Reason: In the interest of providing sufficient safe parking for cyclists and in accordance with the Test Valley Local Plan 2006 policy TRA02.

 Any single garage shall measure 6 metres by 3 metres internally and be constructed as such and made available for the parking of motor vehicles at all times.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy TRA02.

11. Notwithstanding the submitted Residential Travel Plan (at Annex H of the JMP Consultants Ltd) Transport Assessment, a Residential Site Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing prior to the first use of the building hereby permitted. The plan shall include details of implementation, monitoring and will form part of an annual review process.

Reason: To reduce the level of car-borne traffic in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 Annex 2 and the National Planning Policy Framework.

- 12. No development whatsoever shall commence until such time as the highway works set out below have been completed:
 - The works to the entrance to the Smannell Road lay-by access, as shown on plan Y0369-120512-revised.
 - The relocation of the parking provision for the Children's Centre, as shown on Hampshire County Council plan 502727/001 revision A 'General Arrangement' drawing (dated November 2007) submitted at appendix 11 of the submitted Design and Access Statement, as approved by application 11/02362/HCC3N.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy TRA01, TRA05, TRA06 and TRA09.

13. No development shall take place (including site clearance within the application site/area indicated red, until the applicant or their agents or successors in title has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a written brief and specification for a scheme of investigation and mitigation, which has been submitted by the developer and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The site is potentially of archaeological significance in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy ENV11.

Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development whatsoever shall take place until full details of hard and soft landscape works including planting plans; written specifications (stating cultivation and other operations associated with plant and establishment); schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/densities and an implementation programme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall also include; proposed finished levels or contours; details of parking within parking courts; means of enclosure and hard surfacing materials. The landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the implementation programme.

Reason: To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy DES10.

- 15. No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of 10 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The schedule shall include details of the arrangements for its implementation. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved schedule.
 - Reason: To ensure that the works undertaken maintain the appearance of the site and enhance the character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy DES10.
- 16. A landscape management plan, including long term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas and an implementation programme, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of the development. The approved management plan shall be carried out in accordance with the implementation programme.
 - Reason: To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy DES10.
- 17. Notwithstanding the submitted details as shown on the indicative layout plan Y0369-111028-ajt, there shall be a planted landscaping belt to the northern and western site boundaries of not less than four metres in width. Details of this landscaping shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements of conditions 15 and 16 as above. Reason: To ensure that the works undertaken maintain the appearance of the site and enhance the character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy DES10.
- 18. No development (including site clearance and any other preparatory works) shall take place until a scheme detailing how trees shown on the approved plans to be retained are to be protected has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme shall include a plan showing the location and specification of any protective fencing, ground protection or other precautionary measures as informed by British Standard 5837:2012. Such protection measures shall be installed prior to any other site operations and at least 2 working days notice shall be given to the Local Planning Authority. Tree protection installed in discharge of this condition shall be retained and maintained for the full duration of works or until such time as agreed in writing with the

Local Planning Authority. No activities whatsoever shall take place within the protected areas without the prior written agreement of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing trees and natural features during the construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy DES08.

- 19. Woodland Management shall be carried out in accordance with the RPS 'Woodland Management Recommendations' document accompanying the outline planning application. Details of implementation and management responsibilities shall be submitted in accordance with conditions 16 and 17 as above.
 - Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing trees and natural features during the construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy DES08.
- 20. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a Biodiversity Management Scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, detailing the location and design of bird and bat boxes.
 - Reason: To avoid impacts to protected species and to conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with policy ENV05 of the Test Valley local plan, the National Planning Policy Framework and the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.
- 21. Any external lighting scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the details contained within the Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey Report and Reptile Survey Report (RPS, December 2010) to maintain dark bat foraging areas.
 - Reason: To avoid impacts to protected species and to conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with policy ENV05 of the Test Valley local plan, the National Planning Policy Framework, and the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.
- 22. No development shall commence until such time as detail of the reptile receptor area including relevant habitat enhancements and its long-term management have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, as outlined in the Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey Report and Reptile Survey Report (RPS, December 2010) report. Reptile translocation and clearance shall then take place in accordance with this approved detail, and in respect of the requirements of condition 23.
 - Reason: To avoid impacts to protected species and to conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with policy ENV05 of the Test Valley Local Plan 2006, the National Planning Policy Framework, and the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.
- 23. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the measures contained within the Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey Report and Reptile Survey Report (RPS, December 2010) in respect of the trapping, translocation and clearance of the site with respect to reptiles and nesting birds as set out in paragraphs 6.3-6.4 (nesting

birds) and 6.9-6.16 (reptiles) report and the Biodiversity Management Scheme that shall have been submitted in respect of condition 20.

Reason: To avoid impacts to protected species and to conserve and enhance biodiversity in accordance with policy ENV05 of the Test Valley Local Plan 206, the National Planning Policy Framework, and the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.

24. Piling using penetrative methods shall not be permitted other than with the express written consent of the local planning authority, which may be given for those parts of the site where it has been demonstrated that there is no resultant unacceptable risk to groundwater. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details

Reason: The site lies within the groundwater Source Protection Zone 1 for the Smannell Road abstraction and Andover Public Water Supply. The depth to the water table is likely to be limited (5 to 10 metres). There is a potential risk of turbidity from any works carried out at the site below the water which could impact potable supplies. In accordance with policy HAZ03 of the Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006.

25. The development herby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as a scheme to dispose of surface water has been submitted to and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details. The use of porous paving will only be acceptable if suitable pollution prevention measures can be incorporated and a risk assessment demonstrates that the proposals do not pose a risk to groundwater.

Reason: The site lies within the groundwater Source Protection Zone 1 for the Smannell Road abstraction and Andover Public Water Supply. Section 4.4 of the Preliminary Drainage Strategy Report submitted with the application suggests that porous paving may be used on private driveways. In accordance with policy HAZ03 of the Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006.

26. No development whatsoever shall commence until such time as a scheme of noise mitigation measures to include a 2 metre wall to the western boundary of the site, inside of the four metre landscape belt required in accordance with condition 17, has been submitted to and in writing by the Local Planning The noise control measures shall also include details of the acoustic performance for windows in upper floor rooms, and any mechanical ventilation for any bedrooms where this would be necessary to ensure that a noise exposure level of no higher than 63LAeq,T dB is achieved between the hours of 0700 and 2300, and 57LAeq,T dB is achieved between the hours of 2300 and 0700. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure acceptable living conditions are provided for the future occupants of the development in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policies AME01, AME04, South East Plan

- 2009 policy NRM10, and the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 27. The dwellings hereby permitted shall achieve Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until a final Code Certificate has been issued for it certifying that Code Level 3 has been achieved.
 - Reason: To ensure an appropriate form of Sustainable Housing development in accordance with policy CC4 of the South East Plan2009 and the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 28. No development shall take place until details, including plans and cross sections, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority of the existing and proposed ground levels of the development and the boundaries of the development plot, and the height of the ground floor slabs and damp proof courses in relation thereto. The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
 - Reason: To ensure satisfactory relationship between the new development and the adjacent buildings, amenity areas and trees in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policies AME01, AME02, DES06.
- 29. Prior to the commencement of development the visibility splays, hatched green on the approved plan shall be provided. Nothing within the approved visibility splays shall exceed 1.0 metres above the level of the existing carriageway (including the land level and any walls, fences and vegetation). Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) these visibility splays shall be maintained in accordance with the above details at all times.
 - Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance with policy TRA06 and TRA09 of the Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006.
- 30. No development whatsoever including any works to the access shall commence until such time as details have been submitted to and approved in writing of new boundary treatment to the Adult Education Centre, and Children's Centre at the boundary with the access, and that boundary treatment has been installed in accordance with the approved details. The boundary treatment shall thereafter be retained in accordance with the approved details.
 - Reason: In the interests of the safety of highway users and pedestrians in accordance with policy TRA09 of the Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006.
- 31. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development whatsoever until such time as detailed shall commence а calming scheme for the access road has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be to a maximum design speed of 20mph, and this shall be evidenced within the submission. The scheme shall be provided when the access road is constructed, which shall occur prior to the commencement of any other development hereby permitted, other than in respect of the requirements of condition 12. The scheme of

traffic calming measures shall thereafter remain in place in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To limit the speed of vehicles within the site to create an optimised, safe highway environment for existing and proposed users in accordance with Test Valley Borough Local Plan 2006 policy TRA05.

Notes to Applicant:

1. The following policies in the Development Plans are relevant to this decision:

South East Plan – May 2009: Policies SP3 (Urban Focus and Urban Renaissance), CC1 (Sustainable Development), CC2 (Climate Change), H4 (Type and Size of New Housing), H5 (Housing Design and Density), T4 (Parking), NRM10 (Noise).

Test Valley Borough Local Plan (TVBLP); Policies - DES01 (Landscape Character), DES02 (Settlement Character), DES05 (Layout & Setting), DES06 (Scale, Height & Massing), DES07 (Appearance, Detail and Materials), DES08 (Trees and Hedgerows), DES09 (Wildlife and Amenity Features), DES10 (New Landscaping), AME01 (Privacy & Open Space), AME02 (Sunlight and Daylight), AME03 (Artificial Light Intrusion), AME04 (Noise and Vibration), AME05 (Unpleasant Emissions), ENV01 (Biodiversity and Geological Conservation), ENV05 (Protected Species), ENV11 (Archaeology and Cultural Heritage), TRA01 (Travel Generating Development), TRA02 (Parking Standards), TRA04 (Financial Contributions Towards Highways Infrastructure), TRA05 (Safe Access), TRA06 (Safe TRA09 (Highway Impact), SET01 (Housing within Settlements), ESN03 (Housing Types, Density and Mix), ESN21 (Retention of Recreational Areas and Facilities), ESN22 (Public Provision), **ESN30** (Infrastructure Recreational Open Space Provision with New Development), HAZ02 (Flooding), HAZ03 (Pollution), HAZ04 (Land Contamination).

The decision to grant outline planning permission has been taken 2. because the development is in accordance with the policies of the Development Plan. The re-development of the former children's playing fields to provide 50 dwellings, including 20 affordable houses is acceptable in principle. The only matter that is not in outline, and would not be subject of future reserved matters approval is the access. The access was granted planning permission, as is now shown with this proposal, by the County in approving the relocation of the parking from the access to within the Education Centre and Children's Centre. The access and junctions in the vicinity are within capacity so as to accommodate the proposed development without any harm to highway safety. Whilst the layout, appearance, scale, and landscaping are reserved matters, it is considered that the submitted indicative layout demonstrates that 50 dwellings can be readily accommodated at the site, without detriment to the character and appearance of the wider area and without harm to the residential amenity of neighbouring properties.

The density of the proposed development is 35 dwellings per hectare which is in keeping with surrounding development and acceptable. Contributions have been secured in respect of public open space (where provision is not to be made on site) and infrastructure, in respect of highway matters to mitigate the impact of the additional movements within the vicinity, and to secure affordable housing.

The development is considered acceptable in other regards including in respect of ecological matters, archaeology, contamination, drainage and crime. This informative is only intended as a summary of the reason for the grant of planning permission. For further details on the decision please see the application report which is available from the Planning and Building Service.

- 3. Please note the illustrative Masterplan has been used for illustrative purposes only. The identified layout is not accepted by the Local Planning Authority, in particular because of the implications for landscaping.
- 4. A formal application for connection to the public sewerage system is required in order to service this development, please contact Atkins Ltd, Anglo St James House, 39A Southgate Street, Winchester, SO23 9EH, or www.southernwater.co.uk
- 5. Should a surface water public sewer be required, the requisition procedures set out in the Water Industry Act 1991 may be appropriate. The applicant is advised to contact Atkins Ltd, Anglo St James House, 39A Southgate Street, Winchester, SO23 9EH, or www.southernwater.co.uk
- 6. A formal application for connection to the water supply is required in order to service this development. Please contact Atkins Ltd, Anglo St James House, 39A Southgate Street, Winchester, SO23 9EH, or www.southernwater.co.uk
- 7. No vehicle shall leave the site unless its wheels have been sufficiently cleaned as to minimise mud being carried onto the highway. Appropriate measures, including drainage disposal, should be taken and shall be retained for the construction period. Non compliance may breach the Highway Act 1980.
- 8. With regard to the above condition on the submission of highway details, they should be designed to enable an appropriate body in due course to adopt the roads, footway, footpath, cycleway, street lighting and surface water drainage network. The adoption of street lighting and surface drainage will be subject to appropriate arrangements for its maintenance.
- 9. The proposal appears to involve a structure either under or adjacent to the existing/future highway. You are advised to contact the Group Engineer (Bridges), County Surveyors Department, Hampshire County Council, The Castle, WINCHESTER, SO23 8UD (01962 841841) to obtain approval in principle prior to the development commencing.

Test Valley Borough Council - Planning Control Committee – 3 July 2012

10. In respect of condition 5 as set out above, based on the indicative layout shown, and the house types proposed, the maximum parking standard for parking would be 102 spaces.